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s 5 i ¢ 1nzluding mcost of the buildisgs
srrreunding the station on the West, was buil:c ag D2rt of a wajor urkan redevelcrment
~zhema. The building o= Pernisylvania Staticn, the lavestment in new electrified
Zrains and in the werld's largest threetrack railrcad lift bridge, and the censtrustion
o McCarter Highway paralleling the elevated tracks symkolized the bublic kelijef
10 bilg city railways termi nals and Dost-cerression high hecras for business reccvery
+- was also the realizarion Of hroad transportation planning,

meese a twe-story rectanzular Waiting foem with conccurses and an attached
shed, Pannsvlvania Station was criginallv built at a cost oI $42,000,000. L
The Sta=zien is near +-he rmajor highways S“*Vlng the greater MNorthern New Cersey a
but furctionsg esoe ’l" as an imgertant mult i-modal transit link between Newark

and scuth for ccrmutar

w
.

Plan

The building as originally censtructed has a station house 302 fee- leng, 79 fee
wvhese floor is at street level, and a train shed which passes over the eastern t
fcurths of the staticen fhouse and extends beyend it 300 north and 60C feet south.
Staticn was initially dssigned as a multi-medal building, with azes through &he
transversely beneath the “rain shed foming the Hair, CJuvaarse on the south and
72pid Transit Concourse (now called the Nort; Ccnecourse) on the rorth, Three lo
itudinal axes intersect the two transverse con -courses, one b2ing contiained langi
within the main Waiting Room, and the othaer twe heaing the Wes: Corridor (crigina
czlled the North Corridor) and the East CeZride» (origirally called the Soutrh Ce
Since the train shez ig actually a series of Sridges and tha tracks therefors ar
clevataed alove e statisn house, accass to and from ths Various transportaticn
Dedes i1z gained Dy stairvays, Tamps, assilators, and slevarcrs, Additcral elame
“hothe sTation's norhs ang south sides ag ©riginally designed are tha City Bus
Tarminal and the Taxi araa respectively,
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DESCRIPTION (continu=d)

H) 3

o prevent the transmissicn of track and road vibrations to the Station itself, the
] o)

a
cctings of the tracx zlabs, the expressways, and other roads are tectonically
4=

Sy

~ ’ ey B
indapendent of the structure suppcerting the dack, For the same purpose, all colunm
bases of the Station rest con anti-vibration pads of lead, asbestops, and steel.

The Station was first opened in 1935, at which time the main Station building, two

platforms, three tracks, and the first of two naw lift bridges over the Passaic Kiver

were 1in operation. In conjuncticn with the building of the Station, a Pcst Office
facility (long since converted to a warshouse) was built with an interconnecting
cunnel to the Station; also constructad at this time were three new boulevards:
Mclarter Highway, Raymend Boulevard ncrth of the Station, and Raymond Boulevard
west. (now Raymond Plaza West). This last street was built over the new City Subway
lccated in the bed of the Morris Canal and which made a terminus loop under
Pennsylvania Station.

Exterior

Tha exterior architectural treatmant is characterizesd by a semi-classical structure
embellished with Art Deco decoration. The western, principal facade of the station
hcuse contains a definite base, bedy, and cap conforming to the classical traditicn
of pedestal, colunm, and entablature. The entablature 1is continuous throughout the
facade which 1is symmetrically divided in five parts in an a b ¢ b a rhythm. The
base 1s of rubbed pink granite while the body and cap are faced in grey Indian
limestone over non-bearing masonrv. The two deminant parts, the "b" elements, are
the entrance bays which each consist of a high stilted arched opening of rubbed
pink granite rising without an articulated spring from strest level to entablature.
Both the arched head and jamb of the cpening have identical semi-circular profiles.
The spandrels of these arxches are of granite decorated with abstracted and stylized

v O

carvings. In addition, two stylized pediments above the entablature over both entrance

bays further define their importance. These pediments and the architrave and frieze
of the entablature each contain c¢arvings in the Art Decc style. The cast aluminux
window mullions and marquee fascia contain decorative motifs in the same spirit.
Zbove one entrance bay (now dominated by the Gateway bridge) is an astrological
design, approximating the intericr clobe light fixtures. The other entrance bay's
design includes a traditional cloczk.

The end elevations of the staticn house Llock which project beyond the train shed are
of identical size and gsimilar compositicrn, but have differins decorative schemaes. Each
continues the basic organization of the mailn racads wixli granite base, limestone clad
tablatuce. The scuth alevation contains a window glazad
with t*anslucent alabaster marrle ctop the south deor of the Waiting Room. The window
Adi et carvaed reliafs in the same stylistin
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DESCRIPTION (ccontinued)
vein as the maln elevaticn. The window mullicns and marquee fascia contained dacor
identical to that on the main elevatica The north elevation contains only a windo
which is glazed with standard glass. Five decorative case aluminum grilles
which mask air intake vents are prominant in the upper part of this elevation,

The 1,200 foot long elevated train shed is divided into structural bays

of varying size depending on the limitations imposed by the curving, non-parallel

; track configurations and the location of the vehicular streets and drives below

; the train shed. The bays generally range from 30 to 40 feat except for the

wider bridge structures which span Raymond Boulevard and Market Street. The

east and west longitudinal elevations are faced in buff brick with the window

surrounds and coping panel finished in limestcne. Betwean the window bays at

the column lines are unadorned green texrra cotta panels with grey limestone frames

identical to the window surrounds. The cresting is cast aluminum in an authenian

motif. The chief decorative elements of the train shed exteriocr are the ‘identical

motifs that surrornd the vehicular and pedastrian passages that carry the train

over Raymond Boulevard and Market Street. Thesa vehicular ways are emphasized by

the segmental curve of the bridge and the similarily curved lower facing of the

terra cotta panels above. The two street passagess are also emphasized by the

4 pairs of pink granite clad columns on either side of each arch. The fluted and
banded columns are each topped by a stylized granite eagle in nearly full relie

=
-

i The interior architectural treatment is dominated by the elevations and fixtures
of the main Waiting Rocm. The elevations of this space are organized around

a classically inspired ordering of elements which reflects the corresponding
exterior bays at the wast and south elevations. Each intexior elevation is
symmetrically organized around a doorway. The east and west doorways are

each flanked by four kays, and the north and south each by one bay. On the

o west elevation the bays contain full height windows. Above the high travertine
wainscote on the other walls, the bays ars articulated by blank bordered panels
} set off by pilaster strips and each enframing a cast plaster medallion. The

‘ medallions illustrate different historical and contemporary modes of transporta-
ticn and were either partially or fully polychremed.

The doorways were each individunally designed. The two leading directly to the
exterior have vestibules prolecting slightly inte the Waiting Room. They and
the north doorway as well are highly erbellisned with cast aluminum grills
worke. The east doorway, leadiny into tha Main Conccurse, 1s enframad by a
high stilted arch. I%s flanking flutad pilasters and rancled spandrels are of

T s e s e o se L aman



4
51

v boy 120 300

‘ PE:
CNPIEDSTARES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR FOR NS UL oh LY
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE T
' RECEIVED

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES

5 5 S

INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

Nawark Penn Station
Eesex County

NJ 7 7
CONTINUATION SHEET ITEM NUMBER PAGE
DESCRIPTION (continued)
travertine. The size and profile of the arch are similar to those cn the main
exterior elevation and the curved profile of each suggests their primary in-
flow nature. Located atop each of the north and south doorways of ths wWaiting
Room is a clock, repaired to working cendition under the Title X program.

Originally, a total of eight ticket windows were located on the norzrth zide of
the doorway leading to the Main Concourse. Four spherical light fixtures of

white bronze ("whiter" because of a larger proportion of tin than normal bronze)
the
"o

~
)

E ROR

and opal glass based on an astreclogical/slanetary theme were suspendad
segmentally arched ceiling. (Only two of these fixtures remain in the
Rcom.) The ceiling is finished in acoustical tile painted blus with b
gold leaf. The flcor is reddish terrazzo, and the cove bases at the wa
penches are red marble. The benches are of walnut inlaid with alumim
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The decorative scheme in the rest of the Station interior follows =he prisrity

cf functicnal spaces. The Waiting Room dcminates the Station in terms of
both use and decoration, while the remainder of the interior is generally

of a subdued richness and lower density. The walls of the concourses framing

the entrances cf the various service areas and concessions are ordered by a
system of fluted pilasters of grey Napoleson granite topped by an entablature
like running device of decorative aluminum or aluminum and stucco. This was
the backkoard fcr a descriptive or directicnal aluminum signage system. Th

[#]

o VD]

d

3

cenvex PRR ticket windows in the West Cecrridor and the concave H&M RR ticket-

windows are each paneled with cast aluminum. The ceiling in the concourses
plaster and is articulated in the Main Concourse by the slight camber of the

transverse projecting elements, and the hemispherical lighting fixture lenses

in the North Concourse.

Platforms

The train shed also contains some notewcrthy interior elements. Tha most
important are the two bell shaped longitudinal skylights located over platfc
B and D. Since this Station contains the unusual feature of tracks crcossing
above the station house, a roofless platfrcm area has the potential of causi
water damage in the station house below. With electrification, it was thoug
that it no longer was necessary to have an open, smoke venting shed and, thu

it could be enclosed. Skylights w:re felt to be necessary both for light an
te visually relieve a relatively low, dark box type of interior.

3

-
-

The skylights evoke the modernistic ‘imagery of the period with their ball form

4

steel bents flared ot the bottom for a smocth transition intc the coogrete
roof slabs. The bents consist of palred columnsg jeoining tnn bell sna ad tor
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~loord at mid-height and horizontally intersecting the bottom chord. The tcp
crord flairs at its pasa to meet the slightly arching bottom chord with con-
zinues into the plana of the relativaely flat roof. All bent members are Con-
nected longitudinally by a stzel purlin atop sach column and curving bracés.
Betvween the flared bottem and curved tsak of each bant, the top chozd is
straight to form a flat plane for the glass opening between the adjcinin
curved concrete roof slabs. The framing of these skylights is similar to
those designed earlier by Graham, Anderson, Probst and White for Chicago Union
Station and the suburban platfecrms at Philadelphia 30th Street Station.

~he skylight glazing was one of the more zlegant uses of corrugatad wire glass
during its histery of use, primarily as an industrial galzing material. The
wave form of the corrugated glass and the rafterless connections between panes
create a continuous unbroken undulating surfacas which both repeats the larger
curves of the framing bents and reflects the linear character of tha tracks
a“d trains served. The skylights reiterate the Art Deco inspired curvas found

wroughout the building. Alsoc of interast are the walting enclosures on each
platLorm which are constructed completely of aluminum panels.

renovaticns and Additions

The physical changes to the structure have been surprisingly few for a euila-
ing of this complexity. the first medification was the clcsing an” abandenment
of the ticket windows at the end of the North Concourse by the Old Hudson and

it
(]
[o R LI ST g (r

Manhattan Tube system. This change predated the 1962 acquisition of the HaM
by the Port Authority Trans-Hudson Corporation (PATH). At present, the old
windows are maintained, but PATY operates an automatic fare collection systsm

on the platiorm.

In the early 1950s, the Waiting Rocm for tha City Bus Terminal, which was
located in the central portion of the Station's north side, was eliminated.
A second mezzanine had been included in the oxiginal plans, cver the Bug
Terminal, but was never built. Part of the ramp leading tc this sacond
mezzanine was built, but it was modified when a concessicn (a candy store)
moved into the Waiting Room Space. The Waiting Room's elevation fronting on
the North Concourse was disharmeniously remodeled to its existing condition,
Artrak has its offices curently in this space

Chronologically, the next change was the placamant of larg nillboards cn the
train shed roof directly ovar the wist portals cf Raymond Boulevard and Market
Streets lthhugh they have not caused anv physical alternation to the buildirng,
nei ] ts both the aprpearance of the portals and the
et
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glchbe light fixtures were

frze stan
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£ 'a 4 joF Railway Expres fice

50) 1t ort © e itien, a docrway was cut
through the travertine wainscote on the room's north elevation to provide acces
to this office. Although the encroachment to the Waiting Rocm ¢f the new rocnm
has been removed under Title ¥, the dooiway rémains and the two benchas and light
fixtures are still missing.
The storefront area definad by the intersecticn of the Main Concourse with the West
Corridor has esvperienced a series of concession changas and reconfigurations of the
intericr spaces. In 1957 or '58, %the intericr large barber shop was eliminated,
and aporoximately five concessions were put on the West Corridor and Main Concourse.
These walls were entirely reccnfigured with the intrcduction of the new storefronts.
In 1957-58, & major modl icaticn to the original circulation plans was caused by
the eliminaticn of the Wes:t Corridor entranca to the Station £rem the City Bus
Terminal. This doorwav was closed as a result of tha shutting of the large dining
room/lunch rocm in the building's northwast corner and its relocation as a large
restaurant directly on this Wes:t Corridor axis. The new restaurant alsc incorporates
the space once used by two ccncessions and the kitchen area from another restaurant.
The Grevhound Bus facility reoplaced the original dining space. Thes Greyhound buses
have always loaded on Raymond Plaza West and 22 not share use of the City Bus Terminal.

Ancther alteration to the main Waiting Room occu
took over the space on the rocm's southea
concessions, telephones, and a public servic
the bank's new storefront changed the eas

no longer symmetrically ¢ ganwzed.

A major alteration teo the Station structure was br
ticn of an elevated enclosed walkway linking the

directly across Raymond Plaza West. The elevated
elevation through the upper part of the north ent
landing where the escalators and stairs from the

link with the concourse system on the ma floor.
bridge has eliminated th2 upper half of the origin
links the present Greyhcund station, main Waiting
entrance of the main slevation. :

4 in 1963 when a bank concession
formerly occupied by a series of
ty. A result of this was that

Waitcing Poom so that it was
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about in 1972
house to the
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AL.o in 1972, access o and from the City Bus Terminal was medified even more
The axistent elevated bus mazzanine was closed and the ramp to it was sealzd wnzre
it joined the tcrih Concourse as a crime preventing safety precaution. The ramp
édcwn to the 11k at lane 1 was left open. But tha stairs leading from the bus
mezzanine down to islands 2, 3, and 4 between tha bus lanes ware also closed.

The most recent renovations have been undertaken by the Federal Railroad Administration.

Uader Title X of the Public Works and Economic Development aAct of 1374, the Statiocn

has benefitted from general cleaning and repair work. The main Waiting Room has bean

steam cleaned and its cornice painted. The public restrooms between the Main and dNortn
a

1 1

by s
Concourses have bean rehabilitated. DNew glass doors have been substitutad in many
parts of the Station, and the lower platform level has been painted. Ncne of this
« has involved structural changes to the exterior facads.

ns mentioned above are irrevevc ble at this 'point, with

Ir all, none of the alteratlc

tne exception of the elevated bridge to Gateway I which pierces the west elevation

of the station hous2. Therefora, the c.a‘gea to the bullci g over the intervening
years are minor and have not involved si ignificant historical elements. The modifica-

ed as a result of tha natural growth of the Staticn,
cnangec in modal volumas and operations, and because of security issues. Changes
the concession spaces and window walls were part of the nazural evolution of the

o] I
tions to the original Station circulation pattern and to tha access points on the
urre

=~
Ly~
Station.
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STATEMENT OF SiGpFCasCE

Builf i the 193¢'s as & large, "presgtice, ralatial station,"” Pennsylvania Station
ratains much cf itz criginal stature afccr fcrty vears. The Station i3 most notable
for its well davelored and sophisticated functicnal crganization and its Art Lec
detailing which is found in numerous motifs throughout the extericr and Lnterlor

of the building. The Art Deco style is found in repetitive curve linear forms,
periodic decoratiens, ard the clean white metal materials used. Despite grime and
scme deterioraticn alteraticn, the Staticn 2

n is the first and rerhaps the mcst
=1

a ¢
cuccessiul of the grand rai llway stations whic 150 served as an intermcdal terminal.

[N

The most significant design feature of the building is its Art Decso detalllnj which
is found in numerous motifs throughout the interior and exterior of the building.

The Station's overall stvle is Art Decs as well, a repular sub-set of are ’oderne

{c. 1920~194Q0), and a style often asscciated with the public building of that pericd.
The majoxr concent*a**ons of the detail work are on the exterior surrounds of the
west entrances, ‘the nerth, south, and wast entrance interiors of the Waitfhg Room,

the walkway surrounds ;lanklnc the west portals of Raymond Boulevard arnd Market
Street under the train shed, and the running nmetifs throughtout  the building. These
principally are the exterior spandrel vanels and fri ieze on the north elevation,

the coping on the north elevation of the tra in shed, tHhe entanlht”'s pilaster systen
in the Concourses, the Waiting Roon meﬂaIWLO and the four (original) lighting
fixtures in the Waiting Roem. o '

throughout the building, although of
T Deco characteristic. These curves
v

ly in the sz:coth, unadorned
e

The use of curves as a thematic design fesat
a somewhat lesser significance, is another
1 i Bl

pal
o onorth entrances znd th
1l curves of th
son Place; the Waitinc Roo
rridor and the end of the
alse ceiling beams in the
and glass of the two Blatfcrm
Y unconnectec curve linear

a2 ornament and materials finisres

n
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£ b
roreals O"er Raym néd Boulevar
ceiling the convex and concav i
nerth eoncolizse resrectively, and the
main concourse; and the various curves in
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CcoLlars, which was a s zundeed

c.lcr scheme resulted t2 metals

¥ much ¢f the dece c sziny polished
aluminum and some st SE28 W = Deco mgwveamantc
because of thie conrotation of the use of thes ctural materials
with the general pervading spirit of modexrnis

Between the world wars, architecture experienced a transition from the Neo-Tlassical
& r

styles to the Internaticnal Style, and tha Mcdarne variantz wers the rzecpular main-
stream of the architectural traasitcion. The explcrative design of the Newark Station,
exhibited in the non-thematically relatad deccrative and gecmetrical design motifs,
exprasces that new spirit. Since the 1890's, McKim, Mead and White had keen one of
the major firms designing in the Neo-Classic hough the

al/Sezux Arts idiom. Alt

riginal designers, McKim and White, had died in 1906 and 1909 respectively, the
f;rm continued producing designs in a similar stvyle undexr that name., With tha advent
of the Moderne/Art Deco style, they praserved the conservative Classical design
tradition through a transition to a decorative styvle undated to reflect the popular
image of "mcdern," but which maintained the c~mp051ticnal formality and much of the
sympoolism of the earlier period. Penn Station exhikits much of that classical
radition through symmetrical arrangements, vestigial use of an architectural order
containing base, column, and entablature, and other classically inspired decorative
motifs such as the Renaissance-like medallions of the Waiting Roomn.

Transportation

The unique intermodal transportation aspect of the Newark dssign is also significant.
Although there were many larger staticons tha: linked two ox hree modas of puklic
trznsportation, the Pennsvlvania Station was alcone in centaining intercity, and lccal
subway, regional commutsr railread, rog:id transit, and lecal zus facilitiss within
e building complex as originallv designad., P=nnsylvania Station is daesigned with
access to 1ts transportation modes ané free-flowing interior circulaticn in mind

The genesis of the design for the new Station was the 1929 agreement between the Cit
of Newark and the Pennsylvania Railroad which called for the creation of a major
intermodal transportation ccnter on the site of what was then a relatively small
railroadway staticn. Prior to the agreement with lNewark, the PRR in 1928 had
officially announced its intent wo fully electrify the New York- Jh-nq;cr lin
=y

W 2
The nearby PPR staticn at towvask which had been built in 18859 haed bacone cutmoded,
even though its tracks had boaen élevatez in 19.i, tecause of the growth of the ¢ity
and the tremendous inrzrase in cormdter sxuffic with MNew York. 1In additicn, the
Punlic Service Comrany « £ the Ci+- of Newavk had prraviously acruired che right-of-war
of the abparndouad Mcryis Canal wilth the eventual inzsantion oF buillding a local
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subway in the canal ted. The canal intarsected ia BRE Yuzb north of the =f
tarion ter—inal, new vehicular zrteries wsre also planned to pass in the 1o
vicinity of the new Station. The decisicr to elevate the nag:

ot
t
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Station's train shed on a seriss of wviaducts, tia2
1ift bridges, the planning and building of new nig c T

£0 the Station area, and the incorporation of the access Lcdes such as tne
City Subway and the H&M Tube System all are element ¢ demcnstrates the scope
and sophistication of the City's public improvement pregran for the Staticn aresa.
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The PRR engagad McKim, Mead and white to de taticn which would irclude
the facilities for the increased PRR tratii the extended Ha&lt RR from anhatian
Transfer along the PRR right-of-way, local buses, anrd tn° link of these above-grade
facilities with the Citv Subway station beneath re tad in an eventual
cost of $22 million to the City and $20 million to the PRR. .

The new Staticn developed out of the third schems proposed by the architects alter
the first two more extravagant ideas were rejected. That plan was similar to the

one built, but the main facade first prcposed/submitted was composed to emghasize,
only the entrance to the PRR-oriented southern por tion of the building. The Waizin
Room was expressed by an elevation symmetrically disposed around its entrance bay

and flanked on each side by four windcw bays. After reviewing this scheme, the City
suggested that the entrance to the spaces bou ing the other local transporctaticn
modes grouped on the north side of the building be g givan equal prominence. To achiev
this, the architect=s increased *thelr SLDSldl rv one story north wing to the full
height of the main Waiting Room and simply duplicated the bay éesigned for the rai
road entrance at the local transit entrance. This created the visual duality of t
main facade, a design decidely non-classical, ‘and a further indication ©f the
arenitacts’ transiticn from the Beauk Arits.

4
i
ne

The Station's complicatad circulation svstem, upon analysis, is logically disposed

to connect two parallel elevated rail lires with two perpendicular intersecting

lines, one of which is at grade level and the other underground. Pedestrian trangfexr

between these transporzation modes was designad to separate it from all vechnicular

traffic of these modes, and thus the circulation system 13 koth compac: and fungtion-

ally efficient in this Station, which is one of the more operationally sophisticated
distance

transportation terminals in the country.  The dual service of local and long sta
transportaticn needs is ingeniously expressed by the fungdional eaquality irglied by
the separated twin entrance bays of the main facade.

Instituticnal Organization

Amtrak received ownership of Pennsylvania Staticn, Newirk and the right-of ¥ adjoanen
tlhe Scation from the U.S. Rail Reorganization Act on Azril 1, 1976. Prim- <5 this,
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Amtrak and ConFall have teen sbserving the texms cof a 1l%€a agraer

and the Central Raiirocad of New Jersey covering Cerntral MNew Jersey ' s use of the FRR
nt-of-way and certain staticn facilities including Penn Station. A revised

eement is exgected to provide the continued services of ths PRR agreement.

rig
agr
cording te the two leasing agreemant 1 d

rt of Authority Trans-Eudson Corpora leased from the PRR certain a
atforms, and St n facilities at Pe tion, MNewark and PATH recesived

he right to ccns £ cer-ain imprcvements to the PRR facilities at its own cOs<.

0
o
v
53 ot
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967 (renewed 1976) and 1965
=

' i
racxs,

Pennsylvania Station is urusual as a public building for its size, inter-modal and
circulation functicns, architectural character (few railroad stations were built

in the 1930's at all), and the beneficts it supplies its neighborhood in terms of
convenience, beauty, and historic significance. It was also McKim, Mead and White's
last major structure, and cne of few large Art Deco buildings of that era not
subsequently destroyed. The impcrtance of the Station to the residents of New Jersey
is apparent by its inclusion on the State Register, and its size and general gocod
condition ensure its importance to the revitalization of the American railroad system
in the Northeast Corrider.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION
The Station is located between the lMewark Central Business District and
adjacent to the Passaic River. The Station is bounded by Ravmond Flaza East
nd Raymond Plaza West.

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FCR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATEQR COUNTY BCUNDARIES
STATE CODE COUNTY CQ0e
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NAME / TITLE o
Diana Cave . Januarv 6, 1978
CRGANIZATION . 2 DATE
Deleuw, Cather/Parsons & Associates 452-8673
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE
900 17th Street, N.W.
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washingten, D. C 20036

i74STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER CERTIFICATION

THE EVALUATED SIGNIFICANCE OF THIS PROPERTY WITHIN THE STATE IS.
NATIONAL _% STATE LOCAL

As the designated State Historic Presarvation Officer for the Nationai Historic Preservation Act of 1966 iPubiic Law 83 655) |
hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and cernify that it has been evaluated according to the

criteria and Drocedures se forth by the Nanonal Park :rvice.
Deput «7
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TITLE _ . DATE
Denuty Comm1551oner, Department of Environmental Protection
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State of New Jerazy

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

TRENTON 08823
OFFICZ OF THE COMMISSIONER

Dr. William J. Murtagh, Keeper

National Register

Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service
18th and C Streets, NW

Washington, DC 20240

Dear Dr. Murtagh:

I am pleased to renominate the Penn Station, Newark, Essex
County to the National Register of Historic Places. This important
transportation facility was first submitted to you in May 1972 by
then Commissioner of the Department of Environmental Protection
Richard J. Sullivan. The response by your office at that time was
that Penn Station, not yet 50 years old and not of exceptional
significance, did not meet the criteria for inclusion in the National
Register.

While Penn Station is still not fifty years old, the present
application does establish its national significance.

Consequently, as the initial nomination was approved by the
State Review Committee in 1972 (the scope of the new applicaticon has
not been changed), I request that Penn Station be again reviewed.

Should you want any further information concerning this
application, please feel free to contact the staff of the Office
of Historic Preservation, 109 West State Street, Department of
Environmental Protection, Trenton, New Jersey 08625, telephone
(609) 292-2023.

Sincurely,

/Beyty wWhlson
/ Deputy Sta:ze Vistoric Preservation

Ctfficer

BW:cCs
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DESCRIPTTION (continued)

The Station was firse opered in 1935, at whi time the main Station building, two
platforms, “hree tracks, and the first of two new lift bridzes over +=he Passaic Eiver
were in operaticn. In conluncticn with the by uilding of the Station, a Pcst Office
facility (long since converted tz a warshouse) was built with an interconnec*ing
curnel to the Statiorn; also ceonstructad at this +time ware three new boulevards:
Wlclarter Highway, Raymend Boulevar3 ncrth of the Station, and Raymend Boulevard

west. {(now Zaymond Plaza West). This last streas was built cver the new City Subway
iccated in the bed of the Morris Canal and which made a terminus lcop under
Pennsylvania Station.

Exterior

The exterior architectural treatm ent is characterized by a semi-classical 1 structure
erbellished with Art Deco decoraticn. The w estern, principal facade of the station
hcuse centains a defini te base, body, and cap conforming to the classical traditicn
of pedestal, colunm, and entablature, The entablature is cont inuous throughout the
facade which is symnetrically divided in five parts inanabc bt a rhythm. The
case is of rubped pink granite while *he body and cap are faced in Grey Indiana

0]

b LaGlall

limestone over non-bearin masonry. The two dominant arts, the "p" elements, are
g

the entrance bays which each consist of a high stiflted arched orening of rubbed
rink granite risi ng without an ar-iculated Spring from street level to entablature.
es

Soth the arched head ang jarh of _he cpening have identical semi- circular profiles.
The spandrels of these arches ars of granite cecorated with abstractag and stvlizad
carvings. I WO scyli:ad pedimants above &ha entablature over Loth ensranss
bavs further 2nce.  These padirenzs and the archltrave and fris-e
of the entablature aeach Ccontaln carvings in the Arc Dacec strle. The cas=s alumines

£ tain decorative motifsg in the same spirit.

window mullions and marquee fascia ccn
sbove one entrance bay (ncw domina-e
lan, appreximating the interias o

the Gateway bridge) is an astrological
de
design includes a traditional clezk

b)'
obe lignt Zixtures. The other entrance bay's

The end el evat;ons of the staticr ncuse Llock which project beyond the +train shed are
of identical size and similar compositicn, put have differ inT deccrative Schemes. =Each
centinues the basic organization ¢f the main ra acad:s with granite base, limestone clag
ucoer elements, and the same euntaklatuce. The south alevation containg a window glazad
with translucent alabag ter markle ztep the scu-h deor of the “aiting Room. The windew

enframement is de ecoraced witin ¢2ditonzl

unrelalel carved rali1acs in the sare stylistin
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windew

The 1,200 fcot long elevated train shed is divided in=o Structural bays

¢f varying size deranding on the iimitations imposed b the curving, non-parallel
track configurations and the locac Of the vehicular streets and drives helow
the train shed. The bavs generally range from 30 to 40 feat excerpt for the

wider bridge structures wnich span Raymond 3oulevard and Market Street. The

€ast and west longitudinal elevations are facad in buff brick with the window
surrounds and coping panel finished in limestona. Between thz window bays at

the column lines are uradorned green terra cotta panels with grey limestone frames
identical to the window surrounds. The cresting is cast aluminum in an authenian
motif. The chief decorative elements of the train shed extasrior are the identical
rotifs that surrovnd the wvehicular and vedestrian passages that carry tha train
over Raymond Boulevard and Market Strest. These vehicular ways are emphasized by
the segmental curve of the bridge and the similarily curved lowex facing of *he
terra cotta panels above. The TWO street passages are also emphasized by the
rairs of pink granite clad celumns on either side of each arch. The fluted and
Banded columns are each topped by a stylized granite eagle in nearly full relies

- KO

£
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W

- e »

Interior
e e BOL

The interior architecturzl treatment is dominatad by *=he elevations and fixtures
of the main Waiting Room. The elevations of thig Space are oxganized arcund
a classicallv inspired ordering of elements which reflects the corresponding

eéxterior bays at the wast sng south elevations., Each in exior elevation isg
symmetrically organized around a docxrway. The eas:t and west doorwavs are

each Zlanked by rfour bays, and the nzrsh ang south each by cne kay. On the

/@st elevation tha Lays contain full height windews. 3 Ove the hnigh travertine
walnscote cn the other walls, the bavs are articulated by blank berdered panels
set off by pilaster strips and each enframing a cast flaster medallion. The
maedallions illustrate different historical and contemporary modes of transporta-
Licn and were either partially or fully polychreomed

The doorwavs were each irndividunally designed. The two lezding directly to che
eéxterior have vestibules prolecting slightly into the Walting Rocm. They and
the ncrth doorway as well are highly erbellisned with cast aluninum grill
worke. The east docrway, leadin; into tha Main Conccurse, is enframad by a
high stilted arch. Its flanking flu*tad pilasters and nancled scandrels are of

——— w B i odelt PO
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< their
a ccated atop e
Room is a clock, repaired to

Originally, a total of eight ticket windcws ware lecated on the norey ide o
the doorway leading to the Main Concourse. Four spherical ligh: fix i
white bronze ("whiter" because of a larger proportion of tin =
and opal glass based on an astrological/;lanetary theme wera suspen £
segmentally arched ceiling. (Only two of these fixtures remain in the %=
Room.) The ceiling is finished in acsustical tile painted blus wi=h BEfa
gold leaf. The flecor is reddish terrazzo, and the cove base

benches are red marble. The benches are of walnu+ inlaid with a!

The decorative scheme in the rest of the Station interior follows the or
oI functional spaces. The Waiting Room deminates the Staticen in ==
both use and decoraticn, while the ramainder of the interior is gene
of a subdued richness and lower density. The walls of the concourses
the entrances cf the various service areas and concessions are ordares

system of fluted pilasters of grey Napoleon granite topped by an entablature
like running device of deccrative aluminum or alumirum and stucco. This was
the backkoard fcr a descriptive or directicnal aluminum signage systez. Tra

L
cenvex PRR ticket windows in the West Corridor and the concave HaM RR ticke=
windows are each Paneled with cast aluminum, The ceiling in the concourses
plaster and is articulated in the Main Concourse by the slight camber ¢f tha
transverse orojecting elements, and the hemispherical lighting fixture lense
in the North Concourse,

Platforms

2 e OHlS

The train shed also contains scme notewerthy interior elements. The mcst

inportant are the two bell shaped longitudinal skylights located cves BLIEES

B and D. Since this Station contains the unusual feature of tracks Cressing
~ & N

above the station house, a roofless rlatfrom area has the potential o
water damage in the station house below. With electrification, it
that it no longer was necessary te have an open, smcke venting sh ang,
it could be enclosed. Skylights wire felt ta ba necessary both for lighs an
to visually relieve 3 relatively low, dark box tvpe of interisr.

4

The skylights evoks the modernistic“ﬁmagery Of the period with their bhall Form

steel bents flared at the bettom for a smocth transition irtc the coscrece
t

roof =labs. The bents consis“ of paired columns jeining =nt hell sog Ao
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Biaoigd id-Nelgnt a
Lhowd g8 at ika b
TLAlSs o the plans
necied gicudinalls
Zetween the flared bot
szraig o form a fla
curved crate roof s
those designed earlier
Station and the suburb
The skylight glazing was cne of £he meore 2legant uses of ccrrugatad wire glass
during its history of ase, primarily as an indus+rial galzing material. The
wave form of the corrugated glass and the rafterless cennections between panes
Create a continucus unkroken undulating surface which both repeats the larger
curves of the framing bents and reZlects tha linear charactar of tha tracks
and trains served. The skylichts reiterate the Art Deco inspired curvas founs
throughout the buildirng. lsc cf interast arxe the waiting enclosuras on each
platform which are constructad completely of aluminum panels,
Fencovations and Additions
The physical changes to the structure have heen surprisingly few for a puila-
ing of this complexit Ev.  the firs:t medification was the clesing 2nd akandenmer+
of the ticket windows at the end of the North Concourse by the 014 Hudson and
“anhattan Tube system. This c“ange predated the 1962 acquisition of the E&M
by the Pert Authority Trans-Hudsce n Corporation (PATH). &t Present, the olg
windows are maintained, but PATY operates an autcrmatic fares collacticn svstenm
on the olatform.
Che Waiting Roem fer tha Ciiy 8us Terminal, whizh wasz
ral zorticn of the Station's nerth side, was eliminatad.

A < had been included in the criginal plans, cver the 3ug
Tarminal, but was never built. Part oI the ramp leading tc th: second
mez:ani:e was buil buz it was modified when a concessicn (a candy store)

oved into the Walt*ng Room Space. The Waiting Room's elevaticn fronting on
the North Concourse was 4i sharmecniously remodeled to its exis<tin congition.
Artrak has its offices curently in this space
bhronologlcaLly, the next change was the Dlac ment of large tillboards cna tre
train shed roof directly over the wast rtals of Raymond Boulevard and Market
Street. Although they have nct caused nv physical alternation to the builéing,

their presence advers ely affects both h appearance of the pertals and th
character of their fine Art Decc detailin

R S —_— e e e el s 3 £ & aimme —
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spaczz. In 1957 or 'S8, the interior larga harber ahop was eliminated,

ard aprroximatsly five concessions wera gut on the West Corrider and Main Con acourse.
These walls were entirely reccnfizured wish tha intreduction of the new storefronts.
In 1957-58, a major modificatis= to the original circulation plans was caused by

the eliminaticn of the West Ceorride entrancez to the Station Zrecam the City Bus
Terminal. Thig doorway was closed as a resul: of the shutting of the large dining
rcom/lunch rocm in the building's ncrthwest corner and its relocation az a large
rescaurant directly on this Wes> L,ovrldow axis. The rew rastaurant alsc incocrporates
the space once used by two concassions ard the kitchen area from another res:auvrarnt.
The Gravhound Bus facility reolaced the criginal éining space. Tha Grayvhound buses
have always locaded on Ravmong Plaza Wesct and d9 nst share use of the City Eus Terminal.
Ancther alteration to the main Waiting Rcom occurred in 1943 when a tark concession
took over the space on the roem's southeastern side formerly cccoupied by a series of
concessicns, telephcnes, ans a public service facility. A resul: of thig was that

the bank's new storafroak changed the eas: wall of the Waicirz Fosm so that it was
ro longer gymmetrically Srganized.
A major alteratiscn te the Station structure was brousac about in 1972 v the introdus-
ticn ¢f an elevated enclosad walkway linking the station house to the Gateway 1 projec=
directly across Faymond Plaza West. The elevated walkway extands in:=s the wast
elevation through the upper part of the north entrance archway, to mee:t the ériginal
landing where the escalarors and stalirs from the PATH arrival platforﬁ switchback to
link with the concourse system on the main flocr. This intarisor extension of tle
bridge has elirinated tha uppsr half of the original two- story lobby that directly
inks th2e present Grey station, main Waiting Recm, North Concourse, ancd north

o
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The most recent renovaticns have been undertaken by the Federal Zailroad Adninissration.
L.cer Title X of the Public Works and Economic Development ict of 1574, the Staticn

has benefitted from general clzaning and repair work. The main Waiting Rocm has bean
steam cleaned and its ccrnice painted. The public rastrocms bezween =he “ain and Seren
Concourses have pesn rehabilitated. MNew glass docors have beern substitutad in many
parts of the Station, and the lcwer platform level has bean painted. MNcne of this

work has involved structural changes to the extarisr facade.

Ir all, none of the alteraticns mentioned above are irreversible at this point, with
the excepticn of the elevatad bridge to Gateway I which pierces the west elevation

e ca p
of the station house. Therefors, the changes to the buil he intexvening
+=arid

a =
years are minor and have not involved significant historical elemants. The modifica-
tions to the original Station circulation pattern and to tha access points cn the
Stations' north side cccurred as a result of t‘e natural growth of the Staticn,

changes in modal volumas and operations, and be ecurity issues. Changes %o

the cencession spaces and window walls wers part

fu
O g2
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L

natural evoluticn of the Staticn.



ODEPARTMENT OF ENVIRSNMENTAL PROTECTION
DIVISION OF PARKS AND FORESTRY

OFFICE OF HISTORI|C PRESERVATION

109 WEST STATE STREET

TRENTON, NEW JERSEY 0862%

(609) - 292 - 2023

e Sarah:
y As per your request enclosed fird
' site plan for Penn Station, Newark,

Also attazhing other elevations and
plans to give a fuller view of station,

Terry Karschner

11/16/78
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Northeast Corridor Improvement Project Del.euw Cather/Parsons i .

FEDERAL RARROAD ADMPESTRATION Skidmore, Owings & Merril gm——d —lm<m_ g
PEPATTIENT OF TRANSPOfTInt e CrcuT M. . RS eI O 0% NEWARK PENN STATION, NEWARK, N.J. DEC. 1977
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Main Level
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Upper Platform Level

Lower Platform Level
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Lower Level——1'

Section Thru Main Concourse -

Northeast Corridor Improvement Project
FEDERAL RAILROAD ADMINISTRATION
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Del.euw Cather/Parsons
Skidmore, Owings & Merrill

PROJECT ARCHITECTS 1202) 452 5200 223 578
1201 CONNECTICUT AVENUE. NW  WASHINGTON DOC 20038

Building Sections RS
NEWARK PENN STATION, NEWARK, N.J. DEC.1977
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Northeast Corridor Improvement Project
FEDERAL RANROAD ADMMNISTRATION
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Del.euw Cather/Parsons
Skidmore, Owings & Merrill

PROJECT ARCHITECTS (202) 452 5200 223 w78
1201 CONMNECTICUT AVENUE NW. WASHINGION DC 20038

Upper Platform Level

NEWARK PENN STATION,

2T

NEWARK, N.J. DEC. 1977

P 4 e S\ Yr e me— e an

e e g e -y

Y T SR e g e g e

-~



LITITTLITTIe

Northeast Corridor Improvement Project
FEDERAL RALRCAD ADMBPESTRATION
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Deleuw Cather/Parsons
Skidmore, Owings & Merrili
PROJECT ARCHTECTS 1202) 452-8200 223 B3
1201 CONNECTICUT AVENUE, NW, WASHINGTON, DC 20038

Lower Platform Level
NEWARK PENN STATION, NEWARK, N.J.
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United States Department of the Interior
HERITAGE CONSERVATION AND RECREATION SERVICE

WASHINGTON, D.C. 202
IN REPLY REFER TO:

The Director of the Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service

Chris Therral Delaporte

is pleased to inform you that the hlstorlc property llsted on the enclosed

sheet has been nominated by the State Historic Preservation Officer

responsible for your State's implementation of the Natlonal Historlc
" 1vPreservation Act of 1966, P L. 89- 665 (80 Stat 915),‘as amended. It has
accordingly been entered in the Nat1ona1 Reglster of Hlstorlc Places.

A
leaflet explaining the National Register is enclosed for your information
and convenience.

Enclosures

i 8
Lot By



Congressional District 10

Essex County, Newark
Penn Station (1932-1937)

Pennsylvania Station in Newark is a major intermodel transportation facility
which'was constructed on a new site as a replacement for the city’s older,
smaller station. Designed by the prominent architectural firm of McKim,
Mead & White, the building was constructed between 1932 and 1937 as a
post-classical building with strong Art Deco detailing. The entire station
environment, including most of the buildings on the West, was built as part of
a major urban redevelopment scheme. The building of Pennsylvania Station,
the investment in new electrified trains and in the world’s largest three-track
railroad lift bridge, and the construction of McCarter Highway (Route 21)
symbolized the Eublic belief in big city railways terminals and post-

epression high hopes for business recovery. It was also the realization of
broad transportation planning.



Congressional District 10

Essex County, Newark
Penn Station (1932-1937)

Pennsylvania Station in Newark is a major intermodel
transportation facility which was constructed on a new site
as a replacement for the city's older, smaller station.
Designed by the prominent architectural firm of McKim, Mead &
White, the building was constructed between 1932 and 1937 as
a post-classical building with strong Art Deco detailing.
The entire station environment, including most of the
buildings on the West, was built as part of a major urban
redevelopment scheme. The building of Pennsylvania Station,
the investment in new electrified trains and in the world's
largest three-track railroad lift bridge, and the
construction of McCarter Highway (Route 21) symbolized the
public belief in big city railwayg terminals and
post-depression high hopes for business recovery. It was
also the realization of broad transportation planning.
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